Subject: FW: Letter from [Redacted]

From: [Redacted]@revive.scot

Sent: 12 November 2019 14:44

To: Cahinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate Change and Land Reform <CabSecECCLR@gov.scot>
Subject: RE; Letter from [Redacted]

Hi {[Redacted],

Thank you very much for this, it's very appreciated.

Kind regards,

[Redacted]
[Redacted] Revive

Sent: 12 November 2019 14:16

To: [Redacted]@revive,.scot

Cc: CabSecECCLR@gov.scot
Subject: RE: Letter from [Redacted)

Hi [Redacted],
'm good thanks — hope you are too.

Just to let you know | am looking in to if there would be anyone else available on 10t
December and once | have an update, | will be in fouch to let you know.

Many thanks,

[Redacted]

From: [Redacted]@revive.scot <[Redacted]@revive.scot>

Sent: 08 November 2019 15:33

To: [Redacted] <[Redacted]@gov.scot>

Cc: Cabinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate Change and Land Reform <CabSecECCLR@gov.scot>
Subject: RE: Letter from [Redacted]

Hi [Redacted],

| hope you are well and | look forward to receiving a date for this meeting. | am writing with a further
request as the Cabinet Secretary is not available on 10 December for Chris Packham's address to
parliament in the Garden Lobby.

i am wondering if any other representatives for the Scottish Government might be available to address
the reception?




Many thanks and kind regards,

[Redacted]
Revive

From: redacted@revive.scot <redacted @revive.scot>
Sent: 29 October 2019 17:03
To: ‘[Redacted]@gov.scot’ <[Redacted ov,scot>

Cc: 'CabSecECCLR@gov.scot' <CabSecECCLR@gov.scot>
Subject: RE: Letter from [Redacted]

Hi [Redacted],

Thank you for letting me know and | appreciate the consideration the Cabinet Secretary has given to the
importance of the meeting to take place post-Werritty. We would be pleased to consider a few suitable
dates and times in late November or early December if you wish to suggest some and | look forward to
hearing from you.

Many thanks and kind regards,

[Redacted}
Revive

From: [Redacted]|@gov.scot <[Redacted]|@gov.scot> On Behalf Of CabSecECCLR@gov.scot
Sent: 29 October 2019 14:29
To: [Redacted])@revive.scot

Cc: CabSecECCLR@gov. scot
Subject: RE: Letter from [Redacted]

Hi [Redacted],

We have been made aware that Scottish Government officials have not yet received a
copy of the Werritty Group report. In light of this, the Cabinet Secretary is of the view
that it would be more valuable to postpone the meeting until after the report has been
received.

Apologies for this as we fully appreciate that this meeting has been rescheduled
previously.

Happy to tentatively schedule an alternative slot to meet in late November or December
when the report should have been received and Ms Cunningham has had an
opportunity to digest.

Many thanks,




[Redacted]

From: [Redacted]@revive.scot <[Redacted] @revive.scot>

Sent: 22 October 2019 12:59

To: Cabinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate Change and Land Reform <CabSecECCLR@gav.scot>;
[Redacted] <[Redacted]|@gov.scot>

Subject: RE: Letter from [Redacted]

Hi [Redacted)],

| hope you are well, | am writing to confirm that [Redacted], Common Weal, will also be in attendance at
our meeting with the Cabinet Secretary on November 7%, ‘

Many thanks and kind regards,

[Redacted)
Revive

From: [Redacted]@revive.scot <[Redacted] @revive.scot>

Sent: 23 September 2019 14:44

To: 'CabSecECCLR@gov.scot' <CabSecECCLR@gov.scot>; [Redacted] <[Redacted]@gov.scot>
Subject: RE: Letter from [Redacted]

Thank you [Redacted],
This is appreciated and we will be in touch soon.
Kind regards,

[Redacted]

From: [Redacted]@gov.scot <[Redacted]@gov.scot> On Behalf Of CabSecECCLR@gov.scot
Sent: 23 September 2019 14:30

To: [Redacted]@revive.scot; CabSecECCLR@gov.scot
Subject: RE: Letter from [Redacted]

[Redacted],

Thank you for confirming. | will wait to hear from you regarding your third attendee in
due course.

{Redacted]




From: [Redacted]@revive.scot <[Redacted]@revive.scot>

Sent: 23 September 2019 11:48

To: Cabinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate Change and Land Reform <CabSecECCLR@gov.scot>
Subject: RE: Letter from {Redacted]

Hi [Redacted],

Thank you for returning the message. We would be very pleased to accept this invitation and attending
so far will be myself as [Redacted] Revive and [Redacted] League Against Cruel Sports Scotfand. We have
yet to confirm our third attendee but | will let you know in advance, as soon as possible.

Thanks once again,

[Redacted]

From: [Redacted]@gov.scot <[Redacted]@gov.scot> On Behalf Of CabSecECCLR@gov.scot
Sent: 20 September 2019 12:14

To: [Redacted]@revive.scot; CabSecECCLR@gov.scot

Subject: RE: Letter from [Redacted}

Hi [Redacted],

Many thanks for getting back in touch. As you can imagine the Ministers' diary is filling
up quickly as always.

Can you let me know if Thursday 7" Nov from 14:00 — 14:45 would work for yourself
and the others?

Many thanks,

[Redacted]

From: [Redacted]|@revive.scot <[Redacted] @revive.scot>

Sent: 09 September 2019 14:02

To: [Redacted] <[Redacted|@gov.scot>; Cabinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate Change and
Land Reform <CabSecECCLR@gov.scot>

Subject: RE: Letter from [Redacted]

Hi [Redacted],

F hope you are well. | am wondering if we might receive another date soon for a meeting with the
Cabinet Secretary. We understand the Werritty report will possibly be due in the coming weeks and that
a meeting following the publication may be desirable. If you are able to offer any update on our re-
scheduled meeting or some suggested dates now that recess is over, that would be appreciated. | look
forward to hearing from you.




Many thanks and kind regards,

[Redacted]
Revive

From: [Redacted]@gov.scot <[Redacted]@gov.scot> On Behalf Of CabhSecECCLR@gov.scot
Sent: 11 June 2019 14:23

To: [Redacted]@revive,scot; CabSecECCLR@gov.scot

Subject: RE: Letter from [Redacted]

Hi [Redacted],
Thanks for understanding, its very much appreciated.

| have looked into it and it is currently with our officials and have chased it up. A
response should issue shortly.

Many thanks,

[Redacted]

From: Revive Scotland <[Redacted}@revive.scot>

Sent: 11 June 2019 12:17

To: Cabinet Secretary for the Enviranment, Climate Change and Land Reform <CabSecECCIR@gov.scot>
Subject: RE; Letter from [Redacted]

Hi [Redacted],

I'm very well and I hope you are too,

I understand that these things happen and I'll let the other meeting attendants know. I look
forward to hearing from you about a meeting after the recess.

We also inquired about the Cabinet Secretary speaking at our national conference event in Perth
City Center, This Conference is replacing the reputed Hen Harrier day in Scotland and
expanding its remit to consider issues of importance to the environment, Scotland's landscape,
land reform, communities and animal welfare. I have added the link below for your convenience:




https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/wildlife- land-reform-and-environment-tickets-63066924870

We received confirmation that this request was received a few weeks ago and I'm wondering
when we might know if this was possible?

Many thanks again and kind regards,

[Redacted]

Revive

On 11 June 2019 at 11:46 CabSecECCLR/@gov.scot wrote:

Good morning [Redacted],

| hope you are well.

Unfortunately | am going to have to postpone tomorrow's meeting with Ms
Cunningham as she is now required in the chamber. Please accept my
apologies for this inconvenience.

| will be back in touch to set up another meeting. As you can imagine the
Cabinet Sectary’s calendar before summer recess is fully committed,
therefore the meeting will now take place post summer recess.

Again, apologies for the inconvenience.

Many thanks,




[Redacted]

From: [Redacted] On Behalf Of Cabinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate
Change and Land Reform

Sent: 15 March 2019 14:20

To: [Redacted@revive.scot; Cabinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate
Change and Land Reform <CabSecECCLR{(@gov.scot>

Subject: RE: Letter from [Redacted |

Dear [Redacted],

No problem, will await your email to confirm.

Many thanks,

[Redacted]

From: [Redacted}@revive.scot <[Redacted |@revive.scot>
Sent: 15 March 2019 14:09

To: Cabinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate Change and Land Reform
<Cab8ecECCLR(@gov.scot>
Subject: RE: Letter from [Redacted]

Dear [Redacted],

1 will need to confirm who I will be specifically attending with but I believe
[Redacted], who has met with the Cabinet Secretary before in his capacity as
[Redacted] League Against Cruel Sports Scotland, will be in attendance. As for
who else I can confirm closer to the time if that is ok? In short, I will be attending
with a couple of others from the coalition.




Many thanks and kind regards,

[Redacted]

Revive

From: [Redacted|@gov.scot <[Redacted@gov.scot> On Behalf Of
CabSecECCLR@gov.scot

Sent: 15 March 2019 14:01

To: {Redacted]@revive.scot

Ce; CabSecECCLR@gov.scot

Subject: RE: Letter from [Redacted)|

Dear [Redacted],

Thanks for confirming, | have firmed this up in the Cabinet Secretary's
diary. Can you let me know if you are attending with anyone?

Many thanks,

[Redacted]

From: [Redacted](@revive.scot <[Redacted |@revive.scot>

Sent: 14 March 2019 15:14

To: Cabinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate Change and Land Reform
<CabSecECCLR@gov.scot>

Subject: RE: Letter from {Redacted]

Dear [Redacted],




Thank you very much for the offer of dates, and no problem about the delay. I
have just returned from holiday as well so apologies for my delay in responding
too.

We would be very pleased to accept and confirm the 12 June date, 16:00 - 16:45. 1
very much look forward to meeting you and the Cabinet Secretary then.

Many thanks and kind regards,

{Redacted]

Revive

From: [Redactedj@gov.scot <[Redacted@gov.scot> On Behalf Of
CabSecECCLR@gov.scot

Sent: 11 March 2019 15:57

To: [Redacted|@revive.scot

Cc: CabSecECCLR@gov.scot

Subject: RE: Letter from [Redacted]

Dear [Redacted],

Apologies for the time taken to respond to you!

Ms Cunningham has availability on the following:

- Wednesday 12" June from 16:00 — 16:45

- Thursday 20" June from 14:00 — 14:45




Can you let me know if either of these are suitable?

Many thanks,

[Redacted]

From: [Redacted]@revive.scot <[Redacted |@revive.scot>

Sent: 26 February 2019 15:36

To: Cabinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate Change and Land Reform
<CabSecECCLR@gov.scot>

Subject: RE: Letter from [Redacted]

Dear [Redacted],

Thank you very much for passing on this response. As per the request of the letter
1 would be very pleased to organise a date with you, for Spring of this year, to
meet with the Cabinet Secretary.

Due to her busy timetable I would be happy to choose between the potential dates
and times that are suitable for the Cabinet Secretary and I look forward to hearing
your thoughts.

Many thanks and kind regards,

[Redacted]

Revive




From: [Redacted](@gov.scot <[Redacted]@gov.scot> On Behalf Of
CabSecECCLR@gov.scot

Sent: 25 February 2019 15:34

To: [Redactedj@revive.scot

Ce: CabSecECCLR@gov.scot

Subject: Letter from [Redacted]

Dear [Redacted],

Please find attached your response from [Redacted] Ms Roseanna
Cunningham MSP, Cabinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate
Change and Land Reform.

Many thanks,

[Redacted]

[Redacted] Roseanna Cunningham MSP, Cabinet Secretary for Environment,
Climate Change and Land Reform - 2N.08, St Andrews House, Regent
Road, Edinburgh, EH1 3DG - 0131 244 5337, CabsecECCLR@gov.scot

All e-miils and attachments sent by a Ministerial Private Office to any other official on behalf of 2
Minister relating to a decision, request or comment made by a Minister, or a note of a Ministerial
meeting, must be filed appropriately by the recipient. Private Offices de not keep official records of
such e-mails o1 attachments

Scottish Ministers, Special advisers and the Permanent Secretary are covered by the terms of the
Lobbying (Scotland) Act 2016, See ywww.lobbving.scot

= The Scottish Government
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From: [Redacted]

Sent: 16 January 2019 10:55:23

To: Public Engagement Unit

Ce: Cabinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate Change and Land
Reform

Subject: FW: Meeting request with Revive: The coalition for grouse moor
reform

Attachments: Revive Document.pdf

Hij,

One for MACCS please.
Kind Regards,
[Redacted]

From: [Redacted]@revive.scot <[Redacted]@revive.scot>

Sent: 15 January 2019 16:53

To: Cabinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate Change and Land Reform
<CabSecECCLR(@gov.scot>

Subject: Meeting request with Revive: The coalition for grouse moor reform

Dear Cabinet Secretary Roseanna Cunningham,

As you may know, the Revive coalition was established in November last year in the
Royal Society of Edinburgh which was attended by Professor Alan Werritty who is
leading the Grouse Moor Management Group. Moreover, we had a formal meeting
with Professor Werrifty at the end of December and our reports have been submitted
as evidence to inform the work of the panel.

With almost a fifth of Scotland being used as a grouse moor our coalition is pursuing
a reform agenda that seeks to benefit our people, our wildlife and our environment.
We would be very pleased to have the opportunity to meet you in your ministerial
capacity in order to brief you on the Revive coalition and our plans going forward. I
look forward to hearing from you.

Many thanks and kind regards,

[Redacted] Revive
[Redacted|@revive.scot<mailto:[Redacted]@revive.scot>

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Secunity.cloud service,
For more information please visit hitp://www.symanteccloud.com
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For the past 200 years grouse moors have emerged as a
dominantland use in Scotland. Areas previously depopulated
in the “clearances” for sheep grazing were increasingly
adapted inio shooting estates. Specific ownership is offen
difficult to identify as there is there is no meaningful data
on what land is used for in Scotland but it is estimated that
between 1 and 1.5 million hectares {12 - 18% of Scolland)
are managed by a small number of landowners to ensure
the shooling of a maximum number of red grouse for
entertainment. The management of this land leads fo a
mullitude of problems:

Cruel and unnecessary shooling of hundreds of
thousands of grouse
Intensive and widespread legal conlrol of predators,

The Coadlition

such as foxes, stoats, weasels, crows, and magpies

lllegal control of enclangered raptors, such as golden
eagles and hen harriers

A monoculiure of heather that is poor for biodiversity The League Against Cruel Sports

Scolland, OneKind, Friends of the

Earth Scotland, Common Weal and

the Raptor Persecution UK have come
fogether, with the guidance of Andy
Wightman MSP, to respond to the
recently announced Government review
of grouse moors and to work together
over the long term to ask if this is the best
way fo manage whole swathes of the
Scottish countryside.

Annual muirburn, which causes air pollution, adds to
climate change pressures, and raises serious concerns
for inverlebrates and small mammals that are unable
to escape

In some circumstances, increased flood risk for
downsiream communities

Culling of thousandls of mountain hares which are
said to endanger the grouse

A growing network of unregulated fracks to enable
shoolers access, damaging the landscape

Outdoor mass-medication of grouse to protect

from disease @ LEAGUE
The use of sheep as “fick mops” rm—

Friends of
the £arth
Scotland

COMMON WEAL




Subject: RE: Grouse moor management - Revive coalition - 12 June 2019 - 16:00
to 16:45 - Cab Sec ECCLR - 050619

Importance; High

From: {Redacted] [Redacted]@gov.scot>

Sent: 05 June 2019 13:41

To: Cabinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate Change and Land Reform <CabSecECCLR@gov.scot>;
[Redacted] [Redacted]@gov.scot>

Cc: [Redacted] [Redacted}@gov.scot>; [Redacted] [Redacted]@gov.scot>; [Redacted]
[Redacted}@gov.scot>; [Redacted] [Redacted]@gov.scot>

Subject: Grouse moor management - Revive coalition - 12 June 2019 - 16:00 to 16:45 - Cab Sec ECCLR -
050619

Importance: High

Hi [Redacted]

I would be grateful if you could send a calendar request for the above meeting to
[Redacted].

[Redacted]
Further to the agenda below; I'll ensure that the briefing includes:

» Professor Werritty is in the final stages of drafting his report. it is anticipated this
will be lodged with Ministers by mid-Juiy.

» Revive will raise concerns regarding culling of mountain hares, muirburn mal
practices, uses of medicated grit and raptor persecution. All of these matters will
be considered in Professor Werritty's report.

Many thanks in advance.
Best regards

[Redacted]

{Redacted] | Policy Officer | Wildlife & Protected Areas | Natural Resources Division | Environment & Forestry Directorate | Area
3G South | The Scottish Government | Victoria Quay | Edinburgh | EHB 60 | +44 (0)131 244 [Redacted]| email:
{Redacted|@gov.scot

M The Scottish Government
Wi, Y Risghailas na h-Atba




From: [Redacted]

Sent: 04 June 2019 07:20

To: 'Revive Scotland' <[Redacted}@revive.scot>

Cc: [Redacted] <[Redacted}@gov.scot> [Redacted] <[Redacted]@gov.scot> [Redacted]
<[Redacted] @gov.scot> ;[Redacted] <[Redacted]@gov.scot>

Subject: Grouse moor management - Revive coalition - 12 June 2019 - Cab Sec ECCLR - 040619

Dear [Redacted],

Thank you for providing the information as requested.

This is most helpful and should be sufficient for the above meeting.
Best regards,

[Redacted]

[Redasted}| Policy Officer | Wildlife & Protected Areas | Natural Resources Division | Environment & Forestry Directorate | Area
3G South | The Scottish Government | Victoria Quay | Edinburgh | EH6 6QQ | +44 (0}131 244 [Redacted]| email:
[Redacted]@gov.scot

m The Scottish Government
P, % Riaghallys ma h-Alba

Erom: Revive Scotland <<[Redacted]@revive.scot>

Sent: 03 June 2019 16:47

To:[Redacted] <[Redactedi@gov.scot>

Cc: [Redacted] <[Redacted]@gov.scot>

Subject: RE: Grouse moor management - Revive coalition - 12 June 2019 - Cab Sec ECCLR - 030619

Dear [Redacted],

Thank you very much for your request. I can confirm that the attendees are as follows: along
with myself,

Revive [Redacted]
OneKind [Redacted]

Common Weal [Redacted]




Draft agenda:
1. [Redacted] introduces and briefs the Cabinet Secretary on the Revive coalition, its work
and its goals
2. [Redacted] shall expand and discuss specific issues concerning grouse moor
management

3. [Redacted] shall brief the Cabinet Secretary on alternative visions for Scotland's grouse
moors

Does this give you with enough information to go on for next week? If there is anything else I
would be very glad to provide you with it.

Many thanks and kind regards,
[Redacted]

Revive

Dear [Redacted]

I would be grateful if you could confirm who will be accompanying yoil at the above meeting
with the Cabinet Secretary?

Please can you provide me with a copy of your biography and of the other attendees as required
plus several points for the draft agenda.

A response by cop today would be most helpful.

Many thanks in advance.

Best regards

[Redacted]

[Redacted] | Policy Officer | Wildlife & Protected Areas | Natural Resources Division |

Environment & Forestry Directorate | Area 3G South | The Scottish Government | Victoria Quay
| Edinburgh | EH6 6QQ | +44 (0)131 244 [Redacted] | email: [Redacted]@gov.scot
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This e-mail (and any files or other attachments transmitted with it} is intended solely for the
attention of the addressee(s). Unauthorised use, disclosure, storage, copying or distribution of
any part of this e-mail is not permitted. If you are not the intended recipient please destroy the
email, remove any copies from your system and inform the sender immediately by return.

Communications with the Scottish Government may be monitored or recorded in order to secure
the effective operation of the system and for other lawful purposes. The views or opinions
contained within this e-mail may not necessarily reflect those of the Scottish Government.

Tha am post-d seo (agus faidhle neo ceanglan combhla ris) dhan neach neo luchd-ainmichte a-
mhain, Chan eil e ceadaichte a chieachdadh ann an ddigh sam bith, a’ toirt a-steach coraichean,
foillseachadh neo sgaoileadh, gun chead. Ma ’s e is gun d’fhuair sibh sec gun fthiosd’, bu choir
cur as dhan phost-d agus lethbhreac sam bith air an t-siostam agaibh agus fios a leigeil chun
neach a sgaoil am post-d gun dail.

Dh’thaodadh gum bi teachdaireachd sam bith bho Riaghaltas na h-Alba air a chlaradh neo air a
sgrudadh airson dearbhadh gu bheil an siostam ag obair gu h-¢ifeachdach neo airson adhbhar
laghail eile. Dh’fhaodadh nach eil beachdan anns a’ phost-d seo co-ionann ri beachdan
Riaghaltas na h-Alba.
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From: [Redacted]@revive.scot

Sent: 11 January 2019 15:57:25
To: Scottish Ministers
Subject; Meeting request with the Minister for Rural Affairs and the Natural

Environment, Mairi Gougeon

AO — [Redacted]

Dear Minister Mani Gougeon, ,
I would like to first of all congratulate you on Wednesday’s announcement which
signals some vital progress being made with animal welfare issues.

As you may know, Revive: The coalition for grouse moor reform was established in
November last year in the Royal Society of Edinburgh which was attended by
Professor Alan Weritty who is leading the Grouse Moor Management Group.
Moreover, we had a formal meeting with Professor Werritty at the end of December
and our reports have been submitted as evidence to inform the work of the panel.
With almost twenty percent of Scotland being used as a grouse moor our coalition is
pursuing a reform agenda that seeks to benefit our people, our wildlife and our
enviromuent. We would be very pleased to have the opportunity to meet you in your
ministerial capacity in order to brief you on the Revive coalition and our plans going
forward. I look forward to hearing from you.

Many thanks and kind regards,

[Redacted]Revive

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit hitp://www.symanteccloud.com
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From: [Redacted]

Sent: 16 January 2019 10:55:23

To: Public Engagement Unit

Cc: Cabinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate Change and Land
Reform

Sl}‘bject: FW: Meeting request with Revive: The coalition for grouse moor
reform

Attachments: Revive Document.pdf

Hi

2

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
with Professor Werritty at the end of December and our reports have been submitted
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
capacity in order to brief you on the Revive coalition and our plans going forward.
look forward to hearing from you.

Many thanks and kind regards,

[Redacted] Revive
[Redacted]@revive.scot<mailto:[Redacted]@revive.scot>

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit hitp://www.symanteccloud.com
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For the past 200 years grouse moors have emerged as a

dominant land use in Scotland. Areas previously depopulated

in the “clearances” for sheep grazing were increasingly
adapted into shooting estates. Specific ownership is often
difficult fo identify as there is there is no meaningfu! data

on what land is used for in Scofland but it is estimated that
between 1 and 1.5 million heclares (12 - 18% of Scotland)

are managed by a small number of landowners to ensure
the shooting of a maximum number of red grouse for
entertainment. The management of this land leads to a
multitude of problems:

Cruel and unnecessary shooting of hundreds of
thousands of grouse

Intensive and widespread legal control of predators,
such as foxes, stoats, weasels, crows, and magpies
legal control of endangered raptors, such as golden
eagles and hen harriers

A monoculture of heather that is poor for biodiversity
Annual muirburn, which causes air pollution, adds to
climate change pressures, and raises serious concems
for invertebrates and small mammals that are unable
lo escape

In some circumstances, increased food risk for
downstream communilies

Culling of thousainds of mountain hares which are
said to endanger the grouse

A growing network of unregulated Iracks to enable
shoolers access, damaging the landscape

Ouidoor mass-medication of grouse to proiect

from disease
The use of sheep as “fick mops”

The Coalition

The League Against Cruel Sports
Scolland, OneKind, Friends of the

Earth Scotland, Common Weal and

the Raptor Perseculion UK have come
together, with the guidance of Andy
Wightman MSP, to respond to the
recenlly announced Government review
of grouse moors and to work together
over the long term to ask if this is the best
way to manage whole swathes of the
Scoltish countryside.

@/ LEAGUE

MGAMIY CAUR S0OATS

Friends of
the Earth
Scotland

COMMON WEAL




From: [Redacted]

Sent: 24 September 2019 16:09:20

To: Public Engagement Unit

Ce: Cabinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate Change and Land
Reform

Subject: FW: Letter from [Redacted]

[Redacted]

For diary please.
[Redacted]

From: [Redacted}@revive.scot<mailto:[Redacted] @revive.scot>
<[Redacted]@revive.scot<mai!t0:[Redacted]@revive.scot>>

Sent: 24 September 2019 16:07

To: Cabinet Secretary for the Environment, Climate Change and Land Reform
<CabSecECCLR@gov.scot<maiIto:CabSecECCLR@gov.scot>>; [Redacted]
<[Redacted]@gov.scot<mai!to:[Redacted]@gov.scot>> Subject: RE: Letter from
[Redacted]

Hi again [Redacted],

I hope you are well. Additional to this meeting, you may be aware that Revive is
hosting a reception sponsored by Ruth Maguire MSP in the Garden Lobby on
December 10th (6-8pm) with Chris Packham as one of our special guest speakers.

We would also be very pleased to extend an invitation to the Cabinet Secretary to
speak on behalf of the Scottish Government at this particular event if this is possible?l
look forward to hearing from you,

Many thanks again and kind regards,

[Redacted] Revive

*******>!<**********=§=**************************************************
*
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Scottish Government
Riaghattas na h-Alba
gov.scot

Cabinet Secrelary for Environment, Climate Change and
Land Reform
Roseanna Cunningham MSP

T: 0300 244 4000
E: scottish.ministers@gov.scot

[Redacted] Revive
By email; -
[Redacted]@revive.scot

Our ref: 201970015083

{4 June 2019

DQM [Redacted),

Thank you for your email of 15 May inviting Roseanna Cunningham, Cabinet Secretary for
Environment, Climate Change and Land Reform, to address a hen harrier day event at Peith
Theatre, which is due to take place on Saturday, 3 August.

The Cabinet Secretary is grateful for your invitation. Unfortunately, neither the Cabinet
Secretary nor Mairi Gougeon, Minister for Rural Affairs and the Natural Environment, are
available to attend due to prior commitments. However, they are grateful for your kind
invitation and wish you a successful event.

s

|[Redacted]

Private Secretary

scottish Ministers, special advisers and the Permanent Secretary are covered
by the terms of the Lobbying (Scotland) Act 2016. See
www.lobhying.scot

-y
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St Andrew's House, Regent Road, Edinburgh EH1 3DG s IN PEOPLE

www.gov.scot




From: Minister for Rural Affairs and the Natural Environment

Sent: 12 July 2019 18:34:31

To: Public Engagement Unit

Ce: Minister for Rural Affairs and the Natural Environment
Subject: Fw: Forsinard visit and Grouse moor licensing

Attachments: Grouse moor licensing - Whete Next - Report by Lloyd Austin for
RSPB, Mar 2019.pdf

For MACCs MR
Please expedite this case,
Thanks

[Redacted]

[Redacted] Minister for Rural Affairs and the Natural Environment
Ph. 01312444426

Mob. (07896281679

Email. MinisterRANE@gov.scot

From: [Redacted]<[Redacted]@rspb.org.ulc>

Sent: Wednesday, 26 June 2019 10:13

To: Minister for Rural Affairs and the Natural Environment
Cc: [Redacted]

Subject: Forsinard visit and Grouse moor licensing

Dear Minister

It was great to see so much of you at the Royal Highland Show. I have passed on to a
number of your senior civil servants that the energy and openness you brought to
every event you attended was hugely appreciated (and as someone who was at many
of those events 1 know just how many you managed to cram in). Your desire for
candid and honest discussion about issues was noted and appreciated by many of us,
as is your desire to find solutions.

We touched briefly on your planned trip to the Flow country in late July/early August
and I understand plans are underway for us to host you at our Forsinard reserve — I
very much hope I'll be able to join you, however the meeting dates of the first full
Farming and Food Production group might make that tricky — I’m very pleased to
have been invited to join the group and we publicly welcomed it’s launch at the show.

I’m emailing mainly to send through the attached paper which we commissioned in
order to inform the work being undertaken by Professor Werritty and the Grouse
Moot Group. I hope you and your advisors find it useful. The issue of raptor
persecution remains a significant and embarrassing stain on Scotland’s reputation
internationally and we anticipate that the Grouse Moor review will propose real
actions to tackle this issue, I'm aware that the associated challenges of mountain hare
culls, medicated grit and muirburn are all issues which need action and I hope that
recommendations will also be forthcoming on these areas. However, at the heart of
the review is the Government’s commitment to tackling wildlife crime and we hope
that the group’s recommendations and actions arising from it will ensure that this
hugely welcome and important commitment is met.




] appreciate that wildlife management issues will feature heavily in your mailbox. If
you would find helpful to have a discussion about issues surrounding wildlife
management we would be happy to do so whenever you would find it convenient.

Best wishes
[Redacted] RSPB Scotland

Scotland Headquarters 2 Lochside View, Edinburgh Park, Edinburgh, EH12 9DH Tel
[Redacted]

rspb.org.uk<http://www.rspb.org.uk/>
[Let's give nature a home in Scotland]<http://www.rspb.org.uk/homes>
[RSPB logo]<hitp://www.rspb.org.uk/>

RSPB Scotland is part of the RSPB, the UK’s largest nature conservation charity,
inspiring everyone to give nature a home. Together with our partners, we protect
threatened birds and wildlife so our towns, coast and countryside will teem with life
once again. We play a leading role in BirdLife International, a worldwide partnership
of nature conservation organisations.

The Royal Society for the Protection of Birds (RSPB) is a registered charity: England
and Wales no. 207076, Scotland no. SC037654

This email and any attachments may contain material that is confidential, subject to
copyright and intended for the addressee only. If you are not the named recipient you
must not use, disclose, reproduce, copy or distribute the contents of this
communication. If you have received this in error, please contact the sender and then
delete this email from your system. The Royal Society for the Protection of Birds
(RSPB) is a registered charity in England and Wales no. 207076 and in Scotland no.
SC037654.

The RSPB is committed to maintaining your data privacy. We promise to keep your
details safe and will never sell them on to third parties. To find out more about how
we use your information please read our online Privacy Policy:
<https://www.rspb.org.uk/privacy-policy/> <https://www.rspb.org.uk/privacy-policy/
>

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com
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Executive summary

Grouse shooting, particularly management of moorland? to provide for intensive ‘driven’ grouse
shooting, remains an issue with impacts of high conservation concern and one that is highly politically
sensitive. These impacts are all of clear public interest and justify public policy interventions.

In Scotland, 2019 will be a crucial year as, following submission to the Scottish Government, in the
spring, of the ‘Werritty report’, the Government will need to determine what, if any, action it will take.
Analysis here suggests that the Scottish Government will, in effect, have five options, namely: -

Do nething;

Fiecemeal regulation-tightening;

Comprehensive regulation-tightening or a ‘licensing scheme':
Comprehensive reform of the entire hunting culture/system; or
Some form of complete ban.

O hwh

This report suggests that options 4 and 5 will not be chosen — as these are not a solution asked for by
campaigners and the likely opposition would deter Government. Notwithstanding this, however, there
may be long term benefits in seeking to stimulate debate about hunting systems/culture — both to
better inform the delivery of the selected option and to seek to influence longer term decisions.

Option 1, on the other hand, while available should, in the circumstances, be politically untenable.

Thus, the ‘real’ decision is between options 2 and 3 — with option 2 being politically ‘easier' but, in
many ways, “more of the same”; while option 3 provides the opportunity for decisive and ground-
breaking intervention.

Part 3 of this report suggests a legislative mechanism by which option 3 might be introaduced.

This report has been commissioned by RSPB Scotland, and prepared by Lloyd Austin, as a freelance
consultant. 1t therefore represents one person’s perspective and, aithough welcome comments on a
draft were received from RSPB Scotland, it does not represent RSPB Scotland policy. It is RSPB
Scotland to determine whether and how to agree and/or publish any of its contents.

! There is no consistent definition of & ‘grouse moor’ but we take the term to typically mean an unenctosed, usually upland area containing
some mixture of peatland, grass and heathland habitats mostly dominated by heather
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Part 1: Context and introduction

Red grouse Lagopus lagopus scoticus is a medium sized gamehbird living in heather-dominated
habitat in Britain and frefand?. It is a subspecies of the willow grouse or willow ptarmigan, which has
the widest world distribution of any grouse, with a vast breeding range across more northerly parts of
Eurasia and N America®. The species’ global distribution and abundance result in an {UCN
conservation status of ‘Least Concern’®5 However, the L. /. scoficus subspecies, being confined
Britain and Ireland, where thus more than 20% of its world breeding population occurs within the
British Isles, is ‘amber listed’, under this {‘BI') categary®. It is there for considered (potentially)
vulnerable.

Despite being a bird of formal conservation concern it continues to be hunted for both sport and
human consumption. Indeed, management of its habitat for the purposes of enabling sport shooting
has ensured that it is typically much more abundant in such managed areas than in any natural or
semi-natural settings. Conservation legislation, at both EU and domestic (Scottish) levels, permits the
killing/taking of this species?.

Grouse shooting and the management of land for grouse has, in recent years, begun to receive
unprecedented levels of public scrutiny — and generated considerable public debate and some
controversy®. There are several issues that lead to such, often heated, debate including: -

« The association of grouse moor management with legal and itlegal killing of other wildlife,
especially birds of prey and mountain hares?;

¢ The impact of drainage and muirburn, including at times on peatiands, on both carbon
emissions contributing o climate change and water quality/costs of water treatment9;

+ The construction of an increased number of 'hill tracks’ to provide easier, mechanised access
to moors for both land managers and recreational shooters — a ‘development’ barely
regulated by traditional development control™;

+ The continued use of lead ammunition for grouse shooting, resulting in raised lead levels in
both the natural environment and meat consumed by people’?,

» The widespread use of medication on wild birds, either using medicated grit in the natural
environment or the capture, medication and release of birds??,

+ The use of acaricides to kill ticks infesting sheep flocks grazed on grouse moors as ‘tick
mops’ and intended to reduce the risk of tick-borne disease in grouse'; and

2 https://www rsph.ore uk/birds-and-witdlife/wildlife-puides/bird-a-z/red-grouse/

3 Watson & Moss, 2008. Grouse. Collins, London

4 https://www.iucnredlist.org/species/22679460/89520690

* hitp://datazone.birdlife. org/species/factsheet/willow-grouse-lagopus-lagopus

S https://britishbirds.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/20 1 4/07/BoCC4.pdf

7 Section 2 and Schedule 2 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended. While there are those, with an animal
welfare/rights perspective, that may oppose shooting or killing of any wild bird or animal in principle, this is not the position
of most conservation crganisations, including the RSPE who are ‘neutral’ on the ethics/tegality of field sporis in principle.
8 For example: hitps://onlinelibrary. wiley,com/doi/full/10.1111/ibi.12356%4010.111 1/%281SSN%291474-919x.RSPR-
conservation-science

? For example: hitps:/fwww.scotsman.com/news/opinion/duncan-orr-ewing-game-estates-must-stop-prey ing-pn-our-raptors-
and-follow-the-law-1-4856639; https://www nature.scot/sites/default/files/2018-10/Publication®202017%20-
%620SNH%20Commissioned%20Report%620982%20-
%20Analyses%2(of%20the%20fates%200 462 0satellite %62 Otracked %20z 0lden%62 0eas les%20in%20S cotland.pdf: and
hitp://ince.defia.gov.ulk/pdfincedd E.pdf.

¥ hitp://ww2 rspb.org.uk/Images/grant mallord stephen thompson 2012 tem9-318973.pdf (section 4) and
hitps:/Awww.thecce.org.uk/wp-contenthiploads/2016/0 1/CCC-Writien-Subinission-to-Environmental-Audit-Committee-
Inquiry-into-Soil-Health.pdf (relates to northern England but Scottish situation cannot be far different).

W hitp /A www,scattink org/workareas/hill-tracks/

2 For example, see hitps://wwy nebi nlm nih.gov/pme/articles/PMCS 161761/ and

http:/fwwiv. leadanmumunitiongroup.ore.uk/wp-content/uploads/201 5/06/L AG-Report-Fune-20 | S-without-Appendices, pdf
13 See concerns expressed at: hitps:/raptorpersecutionscotland. wordpress.com/20 1 5/10/06/the-red-grouse-and-medicated-
grit-scandal-its-hard-to-swallow/

1 As described in https://www moredun.org.uk/sites/default/files/louping il best practice booklet.pdt ;see concerns
expressed in https:;/onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/ibi. 12356
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e Recent changes, especially the increase/intensification of all the above activities, in mooriand
management in order to produce much higher yields (‘bags’) of birds available to be shot?.

All the above issues are matters of public interest — and, as a result, relate to stated Government
policy objectives. For instance, the Government is committed to restoring biodiversity; reducing
carbon emissions from land use, and minimising water treatment costs as well as reducing the
incidence of toxic lead in both the environment and in foodstuffs. For all these reasons, there is a
public interest justification for intervening — and, if necessary, regulating the management of grouse
shooting.

Such public interest is also demonstrated by the range of NGOs and other campaigners who have,
over the years, sought to address one or more of the above issues — usually by campaigning for
additional or tighter regulation. Land management and shooting interests have, of course, always
challenged the assertions made and either opposed more regulation or, on occasions, sought looser
regulation.

Nevertheless, in relation to birds of prey and wildlife crime, the Scottish Government and Parliament
have, over the last two decades, increasingly recognised the issue and gradually tightened the law
and improved enforcement actions'®, Over recent years, there have also beeh a number of
campaigns (similar to those that led to these wildlife crime changes) seeking to address the issues of
hill tracks, mountain hares, lead and muirburn,

In 2018, the Scottish Raptor Study Group (SRSG) submitted a petition to the Scottish Parliament
asking for it to: -

“urge the Scottish Government to implement urgent action fo introduce a state regulated
system of licensing of gamebird hunting, that addresses the potentially adverse environmental
impact of gamebird hunting, provides for the revocation or amendment of licences where a
licence-holder fails to comply with their terms and conditions, and to implement the
recommendations of the Review of Wildlife Crime Penaities in Scotland.""

This petition generated considerable discussion and evidence, both at the Public Petitions Committee
and the Environment, Climate Change and Land Reform Committee. This petition is still, formally,
open. Partly in response to this petition, last discussed in May 2017, but also in light of the
publication of SNH’s assessment of the pattern of Golden Eagie ‘disappearances’ that same month?,
the Scottish Government announced in May 2017 the establishment of a Grouse Moor Management
Group'? with a remit to: -

“axamine the environmental impact of grouse moor management practices such as muirburmn,
the use of medicated grit and mountain hare culls, and advise on the option of licensing
grouse shooting businesses®.”

The group's composition was announced in November 20172' and was expected to submit its finai
report fo the Scottish Government by the end of March 2019. Due to various delays, it is now
expected that the report will be submitted in late April/early May.

In addition to these ongoing wildlife-related campaigns for reform of, especially "driven’, grouse moor
management, other interests have been — and continue to campaign for reform. A range of wildlife
and landscape bodies have long sought greater controls over the unregulated development of hill

15 For example, hitp:/wwiw.ondywightman condocs/EACS Grouse Report 205 pdf

t This is evidenced, not ieast, by the number of amendments to Pari | of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as it applies
in Scotland: significant strengthening was made in 2003, 2004 and 2011.

17 hitpe/fwww.parliament scot/GettingInvolved/Petitions/PEO1 61 5

Bhttns/Avivv.nature. scotsites/default/files/2018-10/Publication%202017%20-

24208 NH%20Commissioned¥%20Report%20982%20-

0270 Analyses%? 0062 0the%2 0 fates¥2 Do f%2 0satellite %2 (tracked%20goiden %2 Deagles%20in%2 0Seotland. pdf

9 hitps://news.gov.scot/ngws/golden-eagle-deaths

20 hitps:/fwivwy.gov.scot/groups/grouse-moor-management-group/

21 https:/inews.gov.scot/mews/moorland-management




tracks, primarily used for grouse moor management?2. More recently, a coalition of various interests
faunched a new campaign, Revive, directed at reform of grouse moor management?. This is notable
as it involves not only animal welfare interests, but also those usually more concerned with social
justice (Common Weal) or climate change (FoES); this indicates that the issue is now attracting the
attention of those with a broader public interest remit than purely nature conservation.

Alt the above interest in these matters has prompted some political parties to develop policy and
adopt positions on the matter (see Annex).

Debate and challenge will, no doubt, and rightly, take place, but the policies expressed by political
parties together with the current make-up of the Scottish Parliament, suggest that any coherent
licensing proposal should be well received.

However, the current Scottish Parliament term lasts until March 2021, as the next scheduled Scottish
election is in May 2021. Thus, to ensure that any new primary fegislation is passed by the current
Parliament, it would need to be introduced by the summer of 2020 - and to provide sufficient
preparatory, consultation and drafting time, the Scottish Government would need to decide in principle
to proceed by the end of 201924,

The Scottish Government's decision ~ upon receipt of the Werrilty Report in the spring - will be to
select one of 5 options, which may be summarised as: -

Do nothing;

Piecemeal regulation-tightening;

Comprehensive regulation-tightening or a 'licensing scheme’;
Comprehensive reform of the entire hunting culture/system; or
Some form of complete ban

AN

Part 2 of this report explore these options in more detail and suggests that the realistic and politically
tenable choices should be limited to (2) and (3); aithough there is certainly merit in a longer-term
debate about our wider hunting system/culture. To be properly effective, however, it is suggested that
(3) is the best as well as most pragmatic choice. Part 3 then explores in depth how this option might
be delivered.

2 hitp:/fwww.scotlink.orghvp/files/Changing-Tracks LINK Hilltracks Report.odf

B https:/frevive.scot/

27t should be noted that this is a similar timetable to the campaign for a Scottish Environment Act
(hitps:/wwyw.fightforscotlandsnature.scot/) that will/should be needed it response to the Scottish Governments consultation
on EU environmental principles and governance after EU exit (hitps://consult.gov.scat/environment-forestry/environmental-
principles-and-governance/).




Part 2: The options for improved grouse moor management

Part 1 of this report suggests that the Scottish Government's decision — upon receipt of the Werritty
Repott in the spring - will be to select one of 5 options to take forward. To summarise these again: -

Do nothing;

Piecemeal regufation-tightening;

Comprehensive regulation-tightening or a ‘licensing scheme’,
Comprehensive reform of the entire hunting culture/system; or
Some form of complete ban

O R

in this section, each of these options is discussed in some more detail.

Option 1: Do nothing;
This would amount to deciding to continue with the status guo — to determine that current regulations

were sufficient and that, beyond those, ‘voluntary initiatives’ and various ‘partnership workings’ should
be used to improve compliance and/or address concerns.

in the view of many conservationists and campaigners, further reliance on ‘voluntary measures’
without additional sanctions would constitute “more of the same” — and moreover, more of the same
‘failed’ approach.

Given the breadth of concerns, the scale of campaigns and the support for change expressed by, at
least three out of four political parties at Holyrood (constituting a clear majority), this option also
appears to be politically untenable. it could, moreover, result in simply delaying change and, possibly
(as campaigns intensify) ensuring that such change, when it does come, is in fact more radical.

The one potential reason for this option being chosen (by design or default), however, would be the
consequences of a ‘chaotic Brexit' — either a ‘no deal’ or any form of political upheaval arising from
Brexit (e.g. a UK general election, another EU referendum or a second independence referendum).
Any of those events could, in practice, overshadow all other government activity, distract political
attention and/or alter the electoral timescales.

Options 4 & 5: Comprehensive reform of the entire hunting culture/system or some form of
complete ban.

By contrast to the first option, the fourth and fifth options are, of course, the most radical, and are
considered next.

Dealing first with some form of ban of grouse shooting or, at least, a ban on ‘driven’ grouse shooting.
Such an approach would certainly be supported by many campaigners and has — in England -
attracted much support in the form of petitions to the Westminster Parliament. However, despite the
campaigns, no changes of any form have been infroduced. By contrast, in Scotland, campaigners
have deliberately NOT sought any form of 'ban’ — the Revive coalition seeks ‘reform’, the SRSG
petition sought ‘state regulated system of licensing’ and RSPB Scotland has consistently argued for a
licensing approach. it thus seems unlikely that the Scottish Government or Parliament would
consider, unprompted, any form of ban — at least, not in the short-term and/or until or unless other
options were shown to have failed.

However, there may be good reasons to initiate a wider debate about wider hunting culture and the
management of our uplands. At present, hunting and land management is primarily the responsibility
of the landowner (mostly private, but increasingly community, state and/or charity). Such
privatefindividual management decisions are, of course, subject to regulation, but those regulations
are very sectoral — with deer, salmon, and grouse, for instance, all regulated by different statutes.
Moreover, in Scots law wild animals are res nulfius (i.e. belong to no-one) but laws govern the right to
hunt, the method of hunting and the ownership/disposal of the dead animal(s) — usually through the
rights and responsibilities of individual land owners/managers. increasingly, these rights and
responsibilities are being developed/reformed through the ongoing debate under the umbrella of land




reform. For instance, the new Scottish land rights and responsibilities statement?5, as required as a
result of the Land reform (Scotland) Act 2016, seeks a new ‘dynamic’ between land owhers/managers
and the communities onfaround that land. The Scottish Land Commission is promoting this
statement, as well as guidance to encourage land owners/managers to work with and engage better
with local communities?®. It is possible, or probable, that this direction of travel for land reform will
enable communities (of place and interest) to raise public interest concerns, relating to grouse moor
management — and expect them to be addressed.

It would be appropriate, in the longer term, for these Jand reform' debates to consider the ‘ownership'
of wild animals, the right to hunt some species and/or who benefits from those rights. Such a
discussion would be continuation of recent developments ~ such as that leading up to the Wildlife and
Natural Environment (Scotland) Act 2011, which repealed the ancient Game Acts (of e.g. 1772, 1831
and 1832) and introduced the current provisions under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as
amended. This fllustrates a “mindset change” with regard to public policy fowards "game
management” - so that it now considered primarily as a matter of natural resource management,
rather than primarily about the rights of landowners to exploit their assets.

Such a debate may lead to the development of more sustainable, lower intensity hunting systems,
managed by and for communities, or land owners, communities and charities operating
collaboratively. Such systems exist in other countries with a mature hunting culture and would
contrast with the current arrangement where private owners manage land exclusively and intensively
to generate large (and usually private) profit. While this report focuses on the issue of red grouse, a
wider debate would also wish to address issues relating to "game” species that are of conservation
concern (e.g. grey partridge and black grouse, both now red-listed?”) as weil as the impacts of non-
native species (pheasant and red-legged partridge) on the natural environment.

Thus, if options (1) and (4/5) are politically untenable and/or unlikely to be selected, the choice for the
Scottish Government — during the summer and autumn of 2019 ~ will be to pursue a form of
piecemeal regulation tightening (option 2) or to agree and prepare legisiation introducing a form of
licensing (option 3). These two options are now considered in more detail,

Option 2: Piecemeal regulation-tightening:

The various issues of public concern arising from grouse moor management (see part 1) are, in most
cases, governed by ‘sectoral’ regulations, specific to that issue. This option would involve addressing
concerns by piecemeal tightening of some, or all, of those individual reguiatory frameworks. The
table below lists each of the issues considered in part 1 (issues that each have campaigners seeking
better regulation), the regulatory framework involved and the possible means of exerting ‘tighter’
regulatory control with a view to securing more sustainable management of grouse moors.

Issue Regulatory framework Possible form({s) of ‘tightening’
Bird of prey persecution | WCA81, as amended s |llegal killing cannot be made “more
illegal’.

¢ Address some of the issues around the
difficulty of collecting evidence and
prosecuting individuals. For example,
look at the admissibility of video
evidence; or widen single witness
provisions.

+ Possible further tightening of crow cage
trap regulations and/or use of general
licence restrictions. Greater proactivity

2 hitps://wiwyy.gov.scotipublications/scottish-land-rights-responsibilities-statement/
2 https://landeommission.gov.scot/2019/0 t/scottish-land-commission-champions-engagement-process-for-successful-land-

management/
7 hitpsi/Awww rspb.org.uk/globalassets/downloads/documents/birds-and-wildife/birds-of-conservation-concer-d--the-

population-status-of-hirds-in-the-united-kinadom-channel-islands-and-the-isle~o frman.pd £
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in the use of current OGL restriction
powers may also be possible.

Vicarious liability provisions might be
further tightened or more rigorously
pursued.

Use of night sights and thermal imaging
gear could be brought into line with deer
management and Deer Scotland Act
1996; i.e. consent needed from SNH and
need to be on it and competent”
register. Consent for use would be
withheld by SNH where evidence found -
at the civil level of proof - of wildlife
crimes being perpetrated.

Greater use of police powers to withhold
firearms licences to individuals working
in areas where wildlife crimes being
perpetrated; could also be linked to a "fit
and competent” register.

Excessive culling of
mountain hares

WCAB1, as amended,
andfor Habitats
Reguiations

Introduction of full protection, with
general or specific licences, subject to
limits/conditions, for killing in specified
circumstances.

Muirburn

Hill Farming Act 1946
and Muirburn Code.

Define and limit the purposes of
muirburn {currently an unexplained right
for any landowner in the 1946 Act)
and/or the areas where muirburn
may/may not be carried out;

Broaden the range of purposes for which
Ministers may reduce/extend the burning
season;

Widen the variations/conditions allowed
to be imposed in such orders to include
geographically-targeted?® prohibitions;
and/or

Further strengthening of the Muirburn
Code, potentially underpinned by
statute, and introduce power to remove
right of muirburn if the Code is breached.

Grazing management
and drainage

Agricultural legislation,
including especially the
requirements/conditions
of grant schemes,

Agri

cultural legislation and/or conditions for

the receipt of subsidies could be amended

to; -
[ ]

Restrict or define the nature of grazing,
including the use of sheep as ‘tick mops'
and/or limit the nature/frequency of
sheep treatment.

Restrict or define the nature or scale of
drainage works permitied on grouse
moors also used for grazing, andfor
require the restoration of
peatland/wetiands in such areas.
Enforce the Muirburn Code

2 Either by reference to a map or by defining a ‘class of land’ (e.g. over 30cm peat depth).
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Lead ammunition

The Environmental
Protection (Restriction
on Use of Lead Shot)
(Scotland) (No. 2)
Regulations 2004

No proper regulation
covering the inspection
of game meat for lead
contamination

Extend the types of area where lead
shot should not be used — as well as
‘wetlands’ and ‘peatlands with visible
water', this could be expanded to cover
defined moorlands or other definitions of
natural/semi-natural habitat.

Make the ban on lead shot
comprehensive for all forms of (outdoor)
shooting or hunting.

Ensure that lead does not enter the
human food chain

Medication

Veterinary regulations?®
in relation to licensing
chemicals for use and/or
residues in meat for
human consumption;
WCAB1, as amended, in
relation to ‘catching up’
for treatment;

Appears to be no
regulations governing
the deployment of
medicated grit in the
open environment,
although it is understood
that Flubendozole (the
active ingredient in
medicated grit) has to
be prescribed by a
veterinary surgeon,

Regulations on the type and/or use of
medication may be tightened — to, for
instance, prevent its use in an open
environment and limit the levels of active
ingredient excreted by birds.

Hilltracks/Grouse butts

Town and Country
Planning legislation; in
particular, the inclusion
of development for
‘agticulture and forestry’
as permitted
development,

Tighter definition of agricultural and
forestry purposes, such that tracks
primarily for the purpose of enabling
shooting activity are excluded and
require consent,

Remove hilltracks entirely from the
permitted development order and require
planning consent whatever their
purpose.

Recognise grouse bufts as permanent
structures requiring consent

*e.g. The Animal and Animal Products (Examination for Residues and Maximum Residue Limits) (England and Scotland)
Regulations 2015 and The Animal and Animat Products (Examination for Residues and Maximum Residue Limits)
Regulations 1997 as amended. NB Some matters related to medicine licensing and use may be reserved and a matter for

Westminster.
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Community rights and Scoltish land rights and | «  Regulations and/or guidance may be

engagement responsibilities strengthened to involve adjacent or
statement®, as required affected communities in grouse moor
as a result of the Land management decisions.
reform (Scotland) Act * Insome cases, e.g. where communities
2016. experience increased flood risk or
Community engagement effects from smoke, it may be that
guidance from Scottish regulatory bodies could be required to
Government and intervene to reduce or remove such
Scottish Land impacts adjacent or affected
Commission. communities.

The ideas in the proposals coiumn above may all be worthwhile pursuing - either individually or ‘as a
package’. However, while regulations affecting grouse moors would be tightened — it does not
amount to the regulation of grouse shooting. Moreover, this approach would, in practice, be a
continuation of the status quo (aithough not strictly ‘do nothing') as many of these regulations have, in
any case, been incrementally adjustedftightened over the past few decades.

For instance, the WCAB1 has seen numerous small changes since the start of the Scottish
Parliament, while efforts to improve enforcement (e.g. Natural Justice®”) and innovations such as
general licence revocations or vicarious liability®® have all been used to “crackdown” on bird of prey
persecution. Similarly, other issues have been debated at length — sometimes with modest regulation
tightening, sometimes with no further action.

Thus, while it would be unfair to describe this option as “do nething®, it would merely amount to "more
of the same”. This, therefore, is an option that should avoided — as there is a strong case for
something new, decisive and innovative.

Option 3: Comprehensive regulation-tightening or a ‘licensing scheme’;
This option — one that has been advanced by various campaigners — is based on the argument that

gamebird shooting (including grouse shooting) is one of the few ~ if not, only —“natural resource
harvesting system” not to be subject to specific, sectoral legislative oversight. All other forms of
harvesting wild animals for food or sport are, in some way regulated directly and specifically to ensure
the sustainability of that harvest. Whether the legislation or its implementation achieves such
sustainability is, of course, another question — but it undoubtedly exists for all other groups. It also
exists for non-animal natural resources — such as forests and woodiand, water, minerals, efc.

So, for instance, deer management and culling are controlled by statute and administered by SNH34,
sea fishing by the Inshore Fisheries legislation® and, offshore, by the CFP regulations; freshwater
fisheries, especially salmon by its own act?®, Meanwhile, forestry and tree/woodiand management is
governed by the Forestry Acts®”, water abstraction, impoundment or use as for effiuent by legislation
enacting the Water Framework Directive3,

As a result of the above, any private interest seeking to benefit from the management or exploitation
of common natural resources (wild animals, water, etc) are subject to public policy interventions to
control the nature and extent of that exploitation. This is equivalent to the public policy intervention of
“nationalising” development rights via the Town and Country Planning system and, although
agriculture and forestry are excluded from the definition of development in that legislation, they are

30 hiepst/fwwv. gov.scot/publications/scoftish-land-rights-responsibilities-statement/

31 https:/iwww.gov.scot/Resource/Doc/2 1866 /00587 16.pdf

32 hilps:/fwwiy nature.scot/professional-advice/safeguarding-protected-areas-and-species/licensing/species-licensing-z-
guide/birds-and-licensing/general-licences-bireds

3 Introduced by the Wildlife and Natural Environment (Scotland) Act 2011.

¥ Deer (Scotland) Act 1996

% Inshore Fishing (Scotland) Act 1984

36 Salmon and Freshwater Fisheries (Consolidation) (Scotland) Act 2003

37 Forestry Act 1967 and, when implemented, Foresiry and Land Management (Scotland) Act 2018

3 Water Environment and Water Services (Scotland} Act 2003
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governed by parallel, separate processes under the Forestry legislation and EU/domestic agriculture
grants/raguiations.

By contrast, game shooting and especially gamebird shooting has remained free of any overall or
sector-wide regulation®. Indeed, public policy interventions to promote sustainable management
have been relatively few — and often limited to voluntary or partnership projects, such as the ECMP.
Rather, issues have been considered on a piecemeal basis as described above.

Such freedom from public policy intervention is unusual from an international perspective. In
countries outwith the UK, regulation of the game shooting sector is more common and widely
accepted. This was demonstrated in SNH's recent review of gamebird law and licensing in other
European countries®. This review looked at fourteen countries (Germany, Norway, Sweden, Spain,
France, Poland, Hungary, Latvia, Slovakia, Finland, Romania, Estonia, Bulgaria, and Denmark) all of
which have a legislative framework for the regulation of hunting and all of which attempt to implement
sustainable hunting and wise use of bird species. Interestingly, all fourteen also use a system of
licensing of individual hunters.

This latter aspect may be the area where any system for Scotland (and/or other parts of the UK}
wouild differ. To date, methods of hunting are often limited in legislation (by the creation of offences
that apply to the individual hunter). So, for instance, the fisheries legislation limits salmon fisheries to
rod and line etc, while the deer acts specify the types of firearm allowable or times of day/year for
deer shooting and the WCAB81 defines the types of hunting/trapping that are allowable.

By contrast, to the overseas systems described above, the Scottish (and other UK) regulations
affecting the management of hunting are ‘aimed at' the owners of the rights to exploit those
resources. Those owners then, in turn, ‘license’ or agree with individual hunters the terms of which
that hunting may take place. Thus, for instance, deer management is regulated by SNH's oversight
and application of the legislation — but whether shooting is conducted by the owner themselves, by
paying guests or by paid stalkers is a matter for each landowner (although SNH then have powers to
intervene if shooting is insufficient). Likewise, the management of salmon fisheries is the
responsibility of salmon fishery proprietors.

So, if the public interest issues associated with grouse shooting are to be addressed
comprehensively, therefore, then the public policy intervention needs to be sector-wide and
comprehensive — with a clear objective of ensuring the system moves towards sustainability — where
public disbenefits are minimised or eliminated. This, therefore, needs to be a regulatory system
‘aimed at' those with the control of the management of grouse shooting (not individual shooters).

One option may be to expose grouse shooting, and the management of grouse moors, to a system
akin to that which operates for deer management. Potentially, the owners/managers of a grouse
moor may be required to produce and abide by a “grouse moor management plan” to be approved by
a regulator (akin to SNH's approval of deer management plans). Were such a plan not followed, the
regulator should have powers to intervene. However, there is one clear distinction between the deer
and grouse situations. This is that “unsustainable deer management” is usually seen as a failure to
shoot enough deer (and SNH's remedies include ordering higher culls or, in extremis, entering land
and condugcting culls themselves). By contrast, “unsustainable grouse moor management” is usually
seen as seeking to produce too many grouse for shooting — often by the carrying out of illegal or
undesirable acts considered in parts 1 and 2. Were a regulator, in such a situation to be empowered
to intervene, it would usually be unable to 'undo’ the undesirable acts or, without a permanent
presence on the ground, repeat a repetition. This contrasts with the deer management situation
where the regulators in exfremis power is to carry out an undone act.

However, were thers o be a need, in the public interest, to intervene in the case of "unsustainable
grouse moor management’, the most obvious intervention would be a suspension or removal of the
right to shoot grouse. This suspension or removal might be ended when the management is shown to

¥ Other than those related to close seasons and ‘poaching”,
0 hitps://www nature.scot/sites/defauit/files/Publication%2020 17%20-%20SNH%20Commissioned %2 0R eport%209429%420-
%20A% 20 Review%200%20Game%620Bird %2 0Law%20and %20  icensing%20in%2 0Selected%20 European®20 Countries.

pdfl
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have returned to a sustainable basis. This would remove the incentive for the unsustainable
management (including iflegal or undesirable acts) and create an incentive for sustainable or
alternative land management. This is, in effect a form of licensing, as promoted by various NGOs and
sought in the SRSG petition to the Scottish Parliament.

Under such a system, grouse shooting would only be permitted on land that is appropriately licensed,
as it is the rights-holder (landowner/manager) who has control of the rights to shoot and of the
management measures taken pursuant to exercising those rights. The holding of such a licence
would be conditional on management that was in the public interest — with those activities that
were/were not in that interest being defined in an appropriately clear and transparent manner.

While this raises several questions of detail (discussed further in part 3}, the principle is
straightforward — and one that builds on other forms of licencing and/or control and regulation of the
management/harvesting of natural resources. Further, the actual implementation of a licensing
scheme might learn from the administration of those other schemes. In particular, the general licence
approach that is already used for the control of named ‘pest’ species*!. These general licences allow
the capture and taking ("hunting”} of specific species, subject to various conditions. Were such an
approach to be applied to the hunting of grouse (and/or other gamebirds), this would amount to a form
of grouse moor licensing, although a potentially weak one. Nevertheless, if well applied, with
appropriate conditions that addressed the issues of concern described above, this would allow the
public authorities to revoke or limit such licences where there was evidence of illegal or unsustainable
practices.

The limitation or/fand revocation of such general licenses is a policy that is already in operation*? and
one that has been upheld on Judicial Review*. In particular, this judicial review concluded, infer alia,
that; -

“it is reasonable to infer that the policy has been developed fo deal with situations in which the
evidence pointing to criminality is less than sufficient to merit criminal proceedings.”

This underfines the benefit of a licencing approach — where compliance with conditions can be
assessed on the “balance of probabilities” rather than the high (and difficult in such cases) criminal
test of “beyond reasonable doubt™. This is the appropriate test given that matters likely to be under
consideration would either be similar matters to those considered in the above case (i.e. the
prevalence of wildlife crime) and/or those related to the implementation or non-implementation of
management measures (which may not be attributable to a particular individual, but would be inferred
by e.g. the state of the land).

Conclusion

This part of the report has considered the four available options from which the Scottish Government
must, in 2019, determine a course of action in relation to the management of grouse moors. They
may be summarised as: -

Do nothing;

Piecemeal regulation-tightening;

Comprehensive regulation-tightening or a licensing scheme’;
Comprehensive reform of the entire hunting culture/system; or
Some form of complete ban.,

oL

Each of these has been discussed in some detail above, and the balance of the benefits and
disadvantages discussed. In summary, each of the options may be viewed as: -

1. Politically untenable (unless Brexit/other political chaos overshadows everything else);
2. “More of the same” which has not yet addressed the issues raised;

41 5,16 Wildlife and Countryside Act, as amended,

42 hitps: //www nature.scot/professional-advice/safeguarding-protected-areas-and-species/licensing/species-licensing-z-
guide/birds-and-licensing/general-licences-birds

4 hws:/fwww.scolcourts.gov.uk/search-judgments/iudgment?id=80782ea7-8980-69d2-b500-0000d 74aa7
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3. Comprehensive ~ a clear, decisive and deliverable option — which wouid not rule out, in the
longer term a move towards (4);

4. Potentially ideal, but not deliverable in the timescale required; although some initial research
and debate would inform longer-term policy changes, if and when these were appropriate;

5. Politically contentious and therefore also difficult to deliver in a workable timescale; lacks the
advantages of a more comprehensive approach to reform.

Thus, part 3 of this report (below) considers how a general licence scheme as discussed under option
{3) above might be formulated and delivered.
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Part 3: What a comprehensive but pragmatic licensing scheme may look like

To deliver a comprehensive, but pragmatic, licensing scheme would, given the current statutory basis
for grouse shooting, in Part 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended in Scotland),
require new primary legislation. This, however, may be relatively straightforward — and, in some
ways, simple enabling legislation to provide the powers for subsequent secondary legislation and

administrative implementation.

As mentioned above, the design of a licensing system does raise several questions of detail. These
are considered below, with some suggested answers — which have been used to guide the
subsequent parts of this section. If, however, other answers were arrived at, appropriate adjustments

to the detailed proposals could be made.

Should the system apply to just red grouse
shooting or all quarry species?

The approach taken here is limited to red
grouse; but a similar approach could be
adopted, with different licence conditions efc, for
other grouse, pheasants/partridges and/or
wildfowl,

How should the conditions for ‘sustainability’ or
public acceptability be determined?

The scheme below suggests that the state
should, following appropriate
consultation/discussion, develop a Gode of
Practice in the Management of Grouse
Shooting. This Code would guide the various
conditions applied to the licence and/or could
guide the development of a Management Plan
{and the adherence to the plan would become
the condition to the licence).

Who should administer such a system of
licensing?

Logically, this should be SNH. Not only are they
already responsible for deer management, they
are also responsible for much else under the
WCAB1 and Nature Conservation (Scotland) Act
2004. Moreover, in other countries, similar
hunting legisiation is administered by the (near)
equivalents of SNH.

How should the system be funded?

The administration of the system, including
monitoring, should be funded by licence fees; a
scheme for such charges should be developed
in the same manner as applies to CAR licences
which has a legal ‘cost-recovery’ element.

How would this system be publicly transparent?

SNH shouid be required {o publish all
information via a website. This would be similar
to their existing functions regarding deer culling,
and to the Forestry Commission’s Public
Register regarding woodland management.
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While this report does not seek to propose draft legislation, new provisions (as further amendments to
the 1981 Act) that delivered the following would be appropriate to enable a licensing scheme of the
type suggested: -

« Remove red grouse from Schedule 2, Part |;
s Delete red grouse from s.2{4){cb);
+ Delete s.2(3C) relating to the taking and medicating of red grouse:

+ Add new section 16B ("Licencing of grouse shooting”) that would state, either in the statute
itself, the policy memorandum or the Minister's explanation, that the purpose of sections 16B,
16C and 16D is to secure the sustainable management of Scotland’s grouse moors and
address the incidental public disbenefits of poor management;

e And, then provide; -

a. that section 1 does not apply to anything done, in relation to red grouse if it is done
under and in accordance with a licence granted by the appropriate authority.
b. that any such licence: -
i. must define an ‘open’ season?4,
ii. may be, to any degree, general or specific,
ii. may be granted to a particular person or to persons of a particular class,
iv. may be subject to any specified conditions,
v. may be modified or revoked, and
vi. shall be valid for any time period stated in the licence?.
c. that, in the case of a general licence, those wishing to exercise rights under such a
licence should register their intention to do so;
d. that the appropriate authority may charge such sums as necessary for those holding
a specific licence or registering to exercise rights under a general licence;
e, that Ministers must make regulations in relation to the operation of a registration
scheme for the purposes of (¢) above; and
f.  a definition of appropriate authority*s.

+ Add a new section 16C (“Licenced grouse shooting: conditions") that would provide: -

a. that, before the new provisions come into effect that Scottish Ministers have
developed (including with appropriate consultation) and published a Code of Practice
in the Manhagement of Grouse Shooting;

b. that this Code should be clear as what forms of management would be required to
comply with a general licence (the “conditions”) and what other, additional measure
may be undertaken voluntarily as best practice;

c. that any licence issued under section 16B must be subject to the conditions, based
on the Code above, that ensure that activities undertaken under the licence, or to
enable or improve the undertaking of those activities, are carried out in a sustainable
manners’;

d. that this Code and conditions must provide for the taking and medicating of red
grouse under circumstances and in such a manner as the Code and/or conditions
may define*®; and

# to replace the provisions of 5.2(4){(ch) — what this season should be may be specified in the primary legislation as at
present or determined by the licensing authority in issuing the licence,

4 of's.16(5) of 1981 Act in relation to other such specific or general licences.

46 a5 per 5,16(9) of the 1981 Act

47 These conditions may be a series of individual conditions specifying the actions (or inactions) necessary to comply with
the Code, or a single condition specifying compliance with a Management Plan that has been produced (and approved) to be
in accordance with the Code.

* to teplace the provisions of s.2(3C).
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e. thatany licence issued under s.16B must be subject to those exercising rights
reporting to the appropriate authority the number of birds Kkilled in each year, and any
other returns that the licence may specify.

o Add a new section 16D (“Licensed grouse shooting: additional provisions™) that would provide
that; -

a. Scottish Ministers must, by regulations, make provision for the circumstances where
they (or any person to whom they have delegated licensing power) shall modify or
revoke such a licence and the extent to which it may be modified or revoked;

b. These regulations may make provision for revocation to be temporary or ofa
‘suspended nature', pending the carrying out of remedial action, which may be in the
form of the production and implementation of a management plan.

¢. Scottish Ministers must by regulations make such provision for or in connection with
the fixing of charges referred to s.16B(d). Such regulations should include such
principles, objectives or other matters on which a charging scheme should be based,
but, in making such regulations, Ministers should require that they (or their delegate)
have to secure that the amounts recovered by way of charges prescribed by the
charging scheme meet the costs and expenses which they incur in carrying out, or
having others carry out, those functions*.

d. Scottish Ministers must, by regulation, make provision that the licensing authority
must, each year, publish the returns, required under 5.18C, along with an assessment
of the impact of the activities undertaken, under such licences, on the stafus of the
red grouse population as well as other matters of public interest addressed in the
Code published under s.16D.

e The act of killing or attempting to kill a red grouse in circumstances or by means not permitted
by the above licensing system would (automatically as a result from its deletion from
Schedule 2, Part 1) become an offence under s.1 of the 1981 Act. However, many of the
issues arising from poor practice in the management of grouse shooting and those likely to
form part of a Code of Practice in the Management of Grouse Shooting, and thus be subject
to the conditions of a licence, may be undertaken independently of any shooting activities, 1t
would therefore be appropriate to introduce a new offence or offences related to the failure to
comply with the terms and conditions of a licence issued under s.16B. This should include
failure to submit returns by the specified deadline.

« Any alleged action that may be an offence under the ‘new' s.1 [that is, killing a red grouse
except under the provisions of a licence] or any offence created by the provision above would
be investigated, reported and if appropriate prosecuted under the existing provisions of Part 1
of the WCAS81.

o Insert new section to Hill Farming Act 1946 to ensure that any muirburn must be conducted in
a manner that is both in accordance with that Act but alsc any conditions applied to any
licence issued, in relation to the land being burned, under s,16B of the WCAB1.

o Any other ‘consequential amendments’ to other parts of WCAB81 or cther staiutes.

9 o523 of WEWS Act 2003 and Para 6, Schedule 5 of Controlled Activities Regulations 2011 or the charging, by Police
Scotland, to registaer as a snare operator (httgs:!/wmv.scot[and.nolice.uldabout-t;s/ﬁrearms—aml-exulosives—licensing/snares—
and-weapon-transfers/).
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Based on the above proposal for primary legislation, and the conseqguential work needed to deliver
secondary legislation and establish administrative procedures, the sequence of events over the next
few years, may be; -

1. Government announce (and consult on) new policy and legislative intent or draft legislation
{late 2019-early 2020);

2. Legislation introduced and passed by Parliament (mid 2020-March 2021);

3. Government and/or SNH develop and consult on: -

a. Code of Best Practice in the Management of Grouse Shooting;

b. charging scheme and administrative mechanisms, including system for online
registering, as well as scheme for submission and publication of annuai returns;

¢. ‘model' conditions for the new general licence;

d. regulations and appropriate guidance relating to revocations/modifications, and the
use of temporary/suspended revocations, including to contents of any necessary
management plan;

(3a-d to take place consecutively or in parallel during 2021-23)

4. Government set ‘introduction date’ and bring tegislation into effect (potentially spring 2023),
thus allowing time for registrations etc before the season begins on 12" August 2023:

9. From 12% August 2023, all grouse shooting in Scotland to be subject to ficencing
arrangements.
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Annex

The positions of Scottish political parties regarding grouse moor management, especially
licensing.

Scottish National Party
On 5" December 2017, Holyrood magazine reported that: -

“The SNP has thrown its weight behind plans to introduce licensing measures on shooting estates,
after delegates at the party’s National Council meeting backed the policy. Delegates backed a motion
calling for the SNP to come out in support of establishing a licensing system for driven grouse estates
as part of efforts to tackle wildlife crime."50

Scottish Labour

in a statement provided to the author, Labour's Shadow Cabinet Secretary for the Environment,
Ciaudia Beamish MSP, indicated that: -

“Scottish Labour supports the development of licencing of driven grouse moors and a consultation on
the criteria for this. Scottish Labour agreed grouse moor management should be reviewed by the
Scottish Government.

Grouse moors account for 1/5 of Scotland’s land mass, and their regulation needs reassessment with
an ecosystems-based approach in order to improve Scotland's biodiversity, environment, and animal
welfare standards, as well as to improve our land justice, and support rural economies in
sustainability. We await with interest the conclusions of the Grouse Moor Management Review.

Scottish Labour recognises mountain hares are a vital part of the heritage of the Highlands. There is
no evidence to support the rationale for a cull, and Scottish Labour would ban large-scale culls of
mountain hares.

Lead can be highly toxic to nature, habitats, and to people, and Scottish Labour believes it is time to
move to a total ban on the use of lead shot.

There are numerous disturbing counts of raptor persecution. These iconic birds must be protected,
and their illegal persecution must end.

Scottish Labour is giving further consideration to issues of muir burning on peatlands and the use of
medicated grit.

Scottish Labour recognises the work of Revive in relation to the reform of Scotland’s driven grouse
moors, and the need to have a dialogue with the Scottish Gamekeepers Association and others
employed on driven grouse moors as polices and licensing criteria are developed.”

This position was recently confirmed publicly at the 2019 Scottish Labour Party conference in
Dundee®,

Scottish Green Party

Mark Ruskell, Environment spokesperson for the Scottish Greens and MSP for Mid Scotland and Fife,
said®;

30 hittpsi/fwwnay holymnd.com/articles/news/snp-backs—Dlans—inlroducc-IicensEng-shooting-cstates

31 hitps:/fwwnw heraldscotland.com/Mmews/1 14387652 cagles-are-being-slaughtered-as-part-of-serious-greanised-crime-
campaigners-say/ and https:/www.pressandiournal.co.uk/fp/news/politics/holvraad/ 1694966/labour-callg-for-robust-
Hicencing-of-grouse-shoating/

52 hitps;//greens.scot/news/ruskell-welcomes-steps-towards-a-licensing-scheme-for-game-bird-hunting
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“Bird of prey populations have been decimated by decades of persecution while a voluntary approach
has had limited success in tackling wildlife crime. The burden of proof remains far too high to bring
about successful convictions and we have seen a string of cases abandoned by the Crown Office
Prosecution Service. That's why we need a licensing regime backed up by civil law.

"I'm very pleased our committee agreed the next step towards licensing for driven grouse shoots and
urge the Scottish Government to immediately bring interests together to ook at a trial introduction in
an area where persecution is rife. Sporting estates that do not have raptor persecution as part of their
business madel should have nothing to fear from a licencing regime designed to enforce existing faw.”

Scottish Conservatives

The consetvative manifesto for the 2016 Holyrood election indicated that:

“We would also explore reintroducing business rate relief to sporting estates which manage their
environment and wildlife to a high standard.”®

Scottish Liberal Democrats

The party are committed to:

“Take stronger action on wildlife crime using the recommendations on prosecution and penalties from
the recent review group, together with the proposals from Scottish Environment Link in its report
Natural Injustice to tackle failings in reporting and investigation of wildlife crime.”*

53 hﬁp://w\-vw.scottishconservatives.conmvm'dm'ess.’wp-cnntent/uuloads/m16/04/Scottish—Conservative-Manifesto 2016-
DIGITAL-SINGLE-PAGES . pdf
54 hitpe/Aviny, seotlibdems, org uk/masifesto_naturalenvironment

22







Scottish Government

Cablnet Secretary for Environment, Climate Change and ’vl l

Land Reform | Rioghaltas na h-Alba
Rasdanna Cunningham MSP g Wl gov.scot

T, 0300 244 4000
E: scottish.ministers@gov.scot

[Redacted] Revive coalition
By email: ' ‘
[Redacted@revive.scot

Cur rejf: 2(19/0028660
'L\)\ October 2019

pu [

Thank you for your email of 24 September 2018 inviting Roseanna Cunningham, Cabinet
Secretary for Environment, Climate Change and Land Reform, to address a Parliamentary
reception on grouse moor management, which is due to take place in the Garden Lobby of
the Scottish Parliament on Tuesday, 10 December,

The Cabinet Secretary is grateful for your invitation. Unfortunately, neither the Cabinet
Secretary nor Mairi Gougeon, Minister for Rural Affairs and The Natural Environment, are
available to attend due to prior commitments. However, they are grateful for your kind
invitation and wish you a successful event.

L{W\”S l

[Redacted]
Private Secretary

Seottish Ministérs, speclal advisers and the Permanent Soeretary are
covered by the tefms of the Labbying (Stotland) Art 2016, See

www.lobbying.scot
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